# SOUTHEASTERN COLORADO WATER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT & FRYINGPAN-ARKANSAS PROJECT

Asset Valuation Study
Phase 1

**Request for Proposals** 



# **Contents**

Section	n 1. Background	.1
1.1	Introduction	1
1.2	RFP Organization	2
	Owner's Objectives	
	ection 2. Study Overview	
	Study Scope	
	Study Budget and Funding	
	Study Schedule	
	n 3. Services	
	General	
	Roles and Responsibilities	
	n 4. Selection Process	
4.1	Acknowledgement of RFP	.7
4.2	Communications and Owner Contact	.7
4.3	Procurement Schedule	.7
4.4	Pre-Proposal Meetings	.8
Section	n 5. Proposal Submission Requirements	.9
5.1	Submittal Place and Deadline.	.9
5.2	Submission Format	9
5.3	Submission Content	9
	5.3.1 Transmittal Letter	10
	5.3.2 Part 1 – Executive Summary	10
	5.3.3 Part 2 – Consultant Profile	10
	5.3.4 Part 3 – Study Team	13

	5.3.5 Part 4 – Experience	13	
	5.3.6 Part 5 – Study Approach	14	
	5.3.7 Part 6 – Contract Markup	15	
	5.3.8 Part 7 – Fee and Rate Proposal	16	
Sectio	n 6. Proposal Evaluation and Selection		
6.1	General	17	
6.2	.2 Responsiveness		
6.3	3 Minimum Qualification Requirements		
6.4	4 Comparative Evaluation Criteria		
65	Selection	10	
0.3	Selection	19	
	n 7. Conditions for Proposers		
Sectio		20	
Sectio 7.1	n 7. Conditions for Proposers	20	
7.1 7.2	n 7. Conditions for Proposers	20 20	
7.1 7.2 7.3	Owner Authority	20 20 20	
7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4	Owner Authority	20 20 20 20	
7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5	Owner Authority	20 20 20 20 21	
7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6	Owner Authority  Rights of the Owner  Conflict of Interest  Proprietary Information  Other Information	20 20 20 20 21	

**Attachment A – Definition of Terms** 

Attachment B – Draft Contract

Attachment C – Study Background Documents

# **Asset Valuation Study**

# **Request for Proposals**

# **Section 1. Background**

### 1.1 Introduction

The Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District is requesting proposals from qualified engineering firms (consultants) to provide engineering services for the **Fryingpan-Arkansas Project Asset Valuation Study** (Study). The Study will include the development of operation, maintenance, and replacement values for selected features of the Fryingpan-Arkansas (Fry-Ark) Project collection system. The features are located between the Upper Arkansas River Basin and Pueblo Dam. The Asset Valuation Study is Phase 1 of a multi-phased study. Phase 2 will be the Fryingpan-Arkansas Project Condition Assessment Study.

The Owner invites Proposals according to the requirements set forth in this RFP, including the format and content guidelines in Section 5. The Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated using the single-step, best-value selection process described in Section 6. The capitalized terms in this RFP have the meanings as first used in the text of this RFP and as defined in Attachment A (Definition of Terms).

At completion of the evaluation process, the **Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District** (Owner) will select a Proposer to award, or enter negotiations for award of, the Asset Valuation Study Contract [see Attachment B (Draft Contract)].

This RFP is subject to revision after the date of issuance via written addenda. The Request for Proposal, reference documents, and any such addenda will be posted on the Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy's web site (not distributed directly to potential Proposers) at www.secwcd.org. It is each Proposer's responsibility to obtain all RFP addenda prior to submitting its Proposal.

In no event will the Owner be liable for any costs incurred by any Proposer or any other party in developing or submitting a Proposal.

# 1.2 RFP Organization

This RFP consists of seven Sections:

- Section 1: Background
- Section 2: Study Overview
- Section 3: Progressive Design-Build Services
- Section 4: Selection Process

- Section 5: Proposal Submission Requirements
- Section 6: Proposal Evaluation and Selection
- Section 7: Conditions for Proposers
- Attachment A: Definition of Terms
- Attachment B: Draft Contract
- Attachment C: Study Background Documents

The contents of the RFP Attachments take priority over any conflicting statements in the RFP Sections.

Certain Study background documents are being made available as Attachment C (Study Background Documents) for the purpose of preparing Proposals. The Owner is providing these documents only for the purpose of obtaining Proposals for the Study and does not confer a license or grant for any other use. The extent to which the Consultant may rely on such background documents is set forth in Attachment C (Draft Contract).

# 1.3 Owner's Objectives

The Owner's objectives for delivery of the Study are as follows:

- Quality: Provide a study that establishes conceptual replacement costs for listed facilities and establishes the next steps for developing a condition assessment program.
- Cost: Provides scope of services withing the District's range of budget.
- **Schedule**: Achieve the scheduled completion date of the Study.

The Owner is committed to working in close collaboration with the Consultant during the Study to achieve the Study objectives.

# **Section 2. Study Overview**

### 2.1 Study Scope

The Fry-Ark Project is a multipurpose transmountain, transbasin water diversion and delivery project in Colorado. It makes possible an average annual diversion of 69,200 acre-feet of surplus water from the Fryingpan River and other tributaries. Water diverted from the western slope together with available water supplies in the Arkansas River Basin, provides and average annual water supply of 80,400 acre-feet for both municipal/domestic use and the supplemental irrigation in the Project. Construction of the Fry-Ark Project began in 1964 and continued through 1975.

In 2019, the Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District (SECWCD) Board adopted policy to develop a long-term strategy for establishment of reserves for the ongoing operation, maintenance, and replacement of the Fry-Ark Project. As a first step or phase in what will be, a multi-phase condition assessment project, the District desires to prepare conceptual level cost estimates for selected features of the Fry-Ark assets. The first phase asset valuation will be completed using existing feature information and data provided to the consultant selected for the Study. No field investigations are anticipated in Phase1, but are anticipated in later phases. Subsequent phases will include a condition assessment in 2020 and development of a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) in 2021. SECWCD, at its discretion, will enter negotiations with the Phase 1 consultant for completion of subsequent phases or issue a new RFP.

The Owner has determined that this Study is an important long-term part of the Fryingpan-Arkansas Project.

The Fryingpan-Arkansas consists of 5 jurisdictional dams, 16 diversion sites, 27.2 miles of tunnels, 10.7 miles of conduit, and a 7.5-megawatt hydroelectric powerplant. The District is responsible for a portion of the repayment of the construction costs and annual operation, maintenance and replacement of the Project. Property within the District boundaries and that benefit from the Project are assessed an ad valorem tax. In addition to administering this repayment responsibility, the District allocates supplemental water from the Fryingpan-Arkansas Project for use by various private and mutual ditch companies, and for use by the many municipal and domestic water suppliers who directly serve the District 's approximately 720,000 constituents. In addition to repayment of the Project, the District also engages in water management and planning activities for the purpose of meeting present and future water supply needs of water users within its boundaries.

The District functions under a governmental general fund and an Activity Enterprise fund. The fiscal year for the Southeastern District and its Enterprise is January through December.

A list of project features that will be included in the study is described in Section 3.

### 2.2 Study Budget and Funding

The anticipated engineering fee for the Asset Valuation Study, Phase 1, is between \$30,000 and \$60,000. The Condition Assessment Study, Phase 2, has an anticipated multi-year engineering fee between \$170,000 and \$290,000. The total multi-phased project has a multiple year, total project scope of \$200,000 to \$350,000 (All Phases). The Owner intends to use a District funds to finance the Study.

# 2.3 Study Schedule

As indicated in Section 4, it is anticipated that the Asset Valuation Study Contract will be executed on or about March 20, 2020. The Study is expected to be completed no later than July 1, 2020.

# **Section 3. Study Services**

### 3.1 General

The purpose of this study is to analyze Southeastern District's and Fryingpan-Arkansas Project constructed facilities to develop an order-of-magnitude asset value for the Collection and Distribution Systems, which will be utilized to establish reserves for

long-term budgeting purposes. The scope of this work will include all Fryingpan-Arkansas constructed features. Additional data on the features in described in Attachment C.

- West Slope
  - o Diversion Sites
    - Fryingpan River & Martin Creek
    - Chapman Creek
    - South Fork Fryingpan River
    - Ivanhoe Creek
    - Carter Creek
    - Mormon Creek
    - North Cunningham Creek
    - Granite Creek
    - Middle Cunningham Creek
    - Lily Pad Creek
    - North Fork / Lake Savage
    - Sawyer Creek
    - Hunter Creek
    - Midway Creek

- No Name Creek
- o Tunnels
  - Boustead Tunnel
  - Carter Tunnel
  - Mormon Tunnel
  - Cunningham Tunnel
  - Nast Tunnel
  - Chapman Tunnel
  - South Fork Tunnel
  - Fryingpan Feeder
  - Hunter Tunnel
  - Granite Syphon
- o Ruedi Dam
- East Slope
  - Sugar Loaf Dam
  - Twin Lakes Dam
  - o Pueblo Dam
  - Mt. Elbert Conduit
  - Diversion Sites
    - Halfmoon Creek
- James W. Broderick Hydropower Plant
- Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District Headquarters

### Exclusions from the scope:

- Ancillary structures (e.g. roads, signs, fences, cattle guards, overcrossings, overflows, stock dips, drainage inlets, etc.).
- Design and conceptual engineering.
- Expected service life or present-future value evaluations.
- Property acquisition or environmental permitting costs.
- Associated engineering, legal, and administrative costs.
  - o If desired, these items can be quantified and added as a percentage of the total replacement construction costs.
- Contingencies.
  - o If desired, contingencies can be quantified and added as a percentage of the total replacement construction costs.

As with the existing agreement scope, this expanded scope will consist of the following subtasks:

- Evaluation and documentation of types, locations, quantities, and stationing/extents
- Development of unit costs for replacement of types/classes of infrastructure.
- Preparation of a Technical Memorandum documenting the evaluation and findings.

The Consultant will provide the following study scope of services:

Study services:

- Conduct Study initiation workshop with Owner to discuss project objectives, schedule, and exchange information.
- Review existing information and develop cost estimating methodology based on available information.
- Develop conceptual cost estimates for specified Fry-Ark features.
- Conduct review meeting with Owner to discuss cost estimating methodology and breakdown detail.
- Submit draft report summarizing cost estimating methodology and findings.
- Address Owner comment on draft report.
- Submit final report (paper and electronic format).
- Present findings to Owner at a schedule meeting to be determined after final report submittal.

### 3.2 Roles and Responsibilities

**Owner:** The Owner will cooperate with the Consultant and will fulfill its responsibilities in a timely manner to facilitate the Consultant's timely and efficient performance of services. Owner responsibilities include:

- Review submissions and provide comments to Consultant.
- Furnish existing studies and provide complete, accurate and reliable data and information regarding the Study, including record drawings (if available), preliminary studies, etc.
- Provide information and provide (or engage Consultant to perform) additional studies that may be necessary to complete the Project.
- Provide adequate funding.
- Provide access to the Project site and any necessary easements.
- Obtain the governmental approvals and permits Owner is responsible for and assist Consultant in obtaining governmental approvals and permits it is responsible for.
- Provide necessary data and inputs (turbine influent flows from dam) for Study startup and performance testing.

**Consultant:** The Consultant will cooperate with the Owner and will provide in a timely manner the services necessary to complete the Study scope specified in this RFP. Consultant responsibilities include:

- Prepare study documents.
- Implement quality-management procedures.

The roles and responsibilities of the Owner and the Consultant are more fully described in Attachment B (Draft Contract)

# **Section 4. Selection Process**

### 4.1 Acknowledgement of RFP

Each potential Proposer should provide the Owner, within **seven** (7) days of receipt of this RFP, an acknowledgement that it has received the RFP and is a potential Proposer. Such acknowledgement shall identify and provide full contact information for the Proposer Contact, who shall be the Proposer's single point of contact for the receipt of any future documents, notices and addenda associated with this RFP. Such acknowledgement must be sent in writing and a copy electronically transmitted to the Owner Contact.

### 4.2 Communications and Owner Contact

On behalf of the Owner, **Garrett Markus** will act as the sole point of contact for this RFP and shall administer the RFP process. All communications shall be submitted in writing, by fax, or by email, and shall specifically reference this RFP. In person meetings to discuss the RFP will be allowed between January 28 and February 10, 2020. Contact Garrett Markus to arrange an Owner meeting, if desired. All other questions or comments should be directed to the Owner Contact as follows:

Garrett Markus, P.E.
Water Resources Engineer
Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District
31717 United Avenue
Pueblo, CO 81001
719-948-2400
info@secwcd.com

No oral communications from the Owner Contact or other individual is binding. No contact with board members or any public official concerning the Study during the selection process is allowed. A violation of this provision may result in disqualification of Proposer.

### 4.3 Procurement Schedule

The current procurement schedule is as follows:

Issue RFP
Pre-Proposal Meetings (Optional)
Deadline for questions
Submit Proposal

February 3, 2020 February 3 – February 21, 2020 February 25, 2020 February 28, 2020

Proposal evaluation/selection	
-------------------------------	--

Notice of Award
Board Approval
Contract Execution
Award Contract
Submit Draft Study
Submit Final Study

### February 28 – March 5, 2020

March 5, 2020 March 19, 2020-March 20, 2020 March 21, 2020 June 12, 2020, 2020 July 1, 2020

# 4.4 Pre-Proposal Meetings

Owner will conduct optional pre-proposal meetings with each proposer that intends to respond to the RFP. The meeting will be held at a mutually agreed upon date and time between the Proposer and Owner between February 3 and February 21, 2016. The purpose of the meeting will be to discuss Study goals and issues and to provide the Proposer an opportunity to become more familiar with the Study. In addition, the meeting will provide the Owner with an opportunity to meet key team members and to better understand the Proposer's approach and experiences with the asset valuation and condition assessment process. The meeting will be informal. At this meeting, Owner will offer information about the Study and the selection process. Proposers shall advise the Owner Contact **prior to the meeting** of the names of individuals who will attend the pre-proposal meeting.

# **Section 5. Proposal Submission Requirements**

### 5.1 Submittal Place and Deadline

Four (4) Proposal paper documents must be received no later than 2:00 pm February 28, 2020, addressed to:

James Broderick
Executive Director
Southeastern Colorado Water
Conservancy District
31717 United Avenue
Pueblo, CO 81001

The Proposal may be submitted electronically by email to <u>info@secwcd.com</u> by the date and time stated above. If submitted electronically, a paper copy must also be sent as above and received by the end of business on March 2, 2020.

Each Proposer assumes full responsibility for timely delivery of its Proposal at the required location. Any Proposal received after the submittal deadline will be deemed non-responsive and returned. The delivered packaging containing the Proposal documents must note "Proposal Enclosed" on its face.

### 5.2 Submission Format

The Proposal must not exceed **20** total pages (most or all 8½ x 11 inch with 1-inch or greater margins), excluding the transmittal letter, index or table of contents, front and back covers, title pages'/separation tabs, and appendices. Eleven-point font or larger must be used in Proposal Parts 1 - 7. The proposal should focus on the Study approach and the team's experience.

### 5.3 Submission Content

The content requirements set forth in this RFP represent the minimum content requirements for the Proposal. It is the Proposer's responsibility to include information in its Proposal to present all relevant qualifications and other materials. The Proposal, however, should not contain standard marketing or other general materials. It is the Respondent's responsibility to modify such materials so that only directly relevant information is included in the Proposal.

The Proposal must include the following information in the order listed:

- Transmittal Letter
- Part 1 Executive Summary
- Part 2 Consultant Profile
- Part 3 Study Team
- Part 4 Experience
- Part 5 Study Approach
- Part 6 Contract Markup (not included in page count)
- Part Fee and Rate Proposal

### **5.3.1 Transmittal Letter**

Proposers must submit a transmittal letter (maximum two pages) on the Proposer's letterhead. It must be signed by a representative of the Proposer who is authorized to sign such material and to commit the Proposer to the obligations contained in the Proposal. The transmittal letter must include the name, address, phone number and email address for the Proposer Contact and must specify who would be the Consultant's signatory to any contract documents executed with the Owner. The transmittal letter may include other information deemed relevant by the Proposer.

### 5.3.2 Part 1 – Executive Summary

The executive summary (maximum three pages) must include a concise overview of the key elements of the Proposal and must summarize and refer to information in the Proposal. The executive summary shall not be used to convey additional information not found elsewhere in the Proposal.

### 5.3.3 Part 2 – Consultant Profile

A general description of the company proposed as the Consultant must be provided in Part 2 of the Proposal. Information concerning Key Personnel and other firms that may be included on the Study Team, including the project manager and lead technical staff should be provided in Part 3 of the Proposal. The Consultant Profile must include the following information.

### General

Provide general information about the Consultant, such as lines of business and service offerings, locations of home and other offices, number of employees (professional and non-professional), years in business, and evidence of required licenses.

### • Legal structure

Identify whether the Consultant is organized as a corporation, limited liability company (LLC), general partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or other form of legal entity.

### Study office location

Identify where the Consultant intends to maintain its Study office(s) and where the majority of the design work will be performed.

### 5.3.4 Part 3 – Study Team

The composition, organization and management of the Study Team must be described as follows:

- Identify all Key Personnel on the Study Team and describe their specific responsibilities.
- Provide an organizational chart showing the reporting relationships and responsibilities of the Key Personnel and describe the Consultant's approach to the management of such Key Personnel.
- Provide resumes for all Key Personnel in Appendix B of the Proposal. Resumes must be limited to two pages per individual and include:
  - —Academic and professional qualifications
  - —Professional registration (as applicable)
  - —Experience as it relates to the Study and to the individual's specified role on the Study

### 5.3.5 Part 4 – Experience

The Proposal must describe the performance history and experience of the Study Team on similar Studies. In additional the Proposal should include relevant experience with preparation of Condition Assessments and Capital Improvements Plans.

### 5.3.6 Part 5 – Study Approach

Provide a conceptual description (maximum six pages) of the Consultant's approach for managing and performing its services. The following items should be addressed:

- Discuss how a collaborative relationship with the Owner would be established.
- Identify the work components critical to the Study's success and how these components would be achieved.
- Schedule.

In addition, the Study Approach must include brief descriptions of the Consultant's approach to the following:

- Communications
- Quality management

### **5.3.7** Part 6 – Contract Comments

The Proposal must include any general comments related to the Draft Contract (including its attachments), setting forth any suggested revisions/inclusions requested by the Proposer. The draft Contract is general in nature at this point and is included to provide the Proposer the intended legal form that will be used for this Study.

The Owner is not obligated to accept any of the requested exceptions, modifications, additions, etc. submitted by the Proposer in the Contract Markup when negotiating and finalizing the Contract. Furthermore, the Owner may request additional revisions during negotiations and before finalizing the Contract.

Proposers are encouraged to carefully review RFP Attachment B (Draft Contract) and to submit written questions and comments by the deadline specified in Section 4. Based on its assessment of the comments submitted, the Owner (at its sole discretion) may modify the Draft Contract or address the comments during the final contract negotiations. The Owner expects that this review and comment process will substantially reduce the need for extensive post-selection negotiation.

### 5.3.8 Part 7 – Fee and Rate Proposal

The Proposer must provide a fee and rate schedule based on the scope of services. Furnish a fee schedule showing anticipated hours per team member and hourly rates for the scope of services.

Please be advised that the Owner is not interested in proposed fees or rates that provide excessive discounts from the Consultant's anticipated actual costs for the requested services. If Owner determines (at its sole discretion) that the fees and rates included in a Proposal are unacceptably below industry norms or that a Proposer's fees and rates are substantially or unacceptably below other Proposals, the Owner may (at its sole discretion) either declare that Proposal to be non-responsive or seek additional detailed information from that Proposer concerning the cost basis for its fee and rate proposal, prior to rendering a decision on the Proposal's responsiveness.

# **Section 6. Proposal Evaluation and Selection**

### 6.1 General

The Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated by the Owner according to the requirements and criteria outlined in this Section 6. During the Proposal evaluation process, requests for clarification may be submitted to one or more Proposers regarding its Proposal or related matters. Failure to respond in a timely manner to any such questions or requests may be grounds for elimination of the Proposer from further consideration. In addition, the Owner may require that all or a limited number of Proposers participate in interviews.

# 6.2 Responsiveness

Each Proposal will be reviewed to determine whether it is responsive to the RFP. Failure to comply with the requirements of this RFP may result in a Proposal being rejected as non-responsive. At its sole discretion, however, the Owner may waive any such failure to meet a requirement of this RFP and may request clarification or additional information to remedy a failure.

# 6.4 Comparative Evaluation Criteria

The Owner will evaluate and rank the responsive Proposals according to the following criteria in order of priority:

- Study Approach
- Study Experience
- Study Team
- Ability to Meet Schedule
- Fee and Rate Proposal

### 6.5 Selection

After the evaluation process is complete, the Owner will notify Proposers of the rankings. The top-ranked Proposer will be either selected for contract award.

# **Section 7. Conditions for Proposers**

# 7.1 Owner Authority

Owner is a Water Conservancy District in the State of Colorado

# 7.2 Rights of the Owner

The Southeastern District reserves, holds, and may exercise, at its sole discretion, the following rights and options with regard to this RFP and selection process in accordance with the provisions of applicable law:

- To transmit the RFP to and invite a SOP from any firm at any time during the selection process.
- To determine that any SOP received complies, or fails to comply, with the terms of this RFP.
- To waive any technical non-conformance with the terms of this RFP.
- To change or alter the schedule for any events called for in this RFP upon the issuance of notice to all prospective respondents who have received a copy of this RFP.
- To conduct investigations of any or all of the respondents, as Southeastern District deems
  necessary or convenient, to clarify the information provided as part of the SOP, and to request
  additional information to support the information included in any SOP.
- To suspend or terminate any portion of or all of the selection process described in this RFP at
  any time (in its sole discretion). If terminated, Southeastern District may commence a new
  selection process or exercise any other rights provided under applicable law without an
  obligation to the respondents.
- To eliminate from further consideration any respondent who communicates with Southeastern District Board director or staff regarding this RFP, other than the designated contact person listed herein.

### 7.3 Conflict of Interest

The following laws mandate the public disclosure of certain information concerning persons doing business or seeking to do business with the Owner, including affiliations and business and financial relationships such persons may have with Owner officers.

# 7.4 Proprietary Information

All materials submitted to the Owner become public property. If the Proposal contains proprietary information that the Proposer does not want disclosed, each page containing such information must be identified and marked "PROPRIETARY" at the time of submittal. Owner will, to the extent provided by law, endeavor to protect such information from disclosure. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however, lies with to **the Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District**. Failure to identify proprietary information will result in all unmarked sections being deemed non-proprietary and available upon public request. Proposers shall not be permitted to mark entire Proposal as proprietary.

### 7.5 Other Information

### Officials not to Benefit

No Member of the Delegation to the Congress, Resident Commissioner, or official of the District shall benefit from the RFP other than as a water user or landowner in the same manner as other water users or landowners.

### **Equal Employment Opportunity**

- (a) The District will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The District will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The District agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (b) The District will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the District, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- (c) The District will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (d) The District will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the agency Contracting Officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the District's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous

places available to employees and applicants for employment.

- (e) The District will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (f) The District will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (g) In the event of the District's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the District may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (h) The District will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The District will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the District becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the District may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

### 7.6 Addenda

If any revisions to the RFP or procurement process become necessary or desirable (at the Owner's sole discretion), the Owner may issue written addenda. **The Owner will not transmit addenda to potential Proposers.** The Owner will post all addenda on the Owner Study website at the following address: **www.secwcd.org. It is Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda prior to submitting its Proposal.** 

### 7.7 Protests

Any protest to an Owner's action in connection with this procurement must be filed in writing no later than 20 business days following such action and must be in strict accordance with the Owner's applicable procedures and with applicable law.

# **Attachment A**

### **Definition of Terms**

The definitions of some of the capitalized terms used in this RFP are presented below:

**Consultant** – The entity that is selected to enter into the Progressive Design-Build Contract with the Owner and that will be the single point of accountability to the Owner for delivery of the services and the Study.

**Draft Contract** – The draft contract, including the agreement and all of its attachments, presented as RFP Attachment C (Draft Contract).

**Key Personnel** – The individuals, employed by Consultant or other firms included on the Study Team, who would fill certain key roles in delivery of the Study and related services by the Consultant, including the following positions: Study manager, safety manager, design manager, and construction manager.

Owner - Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District

**Project – The Fryingpan-Arkansas Project (Fry-Ark)** 

Study – Asset Valuation Study

**Study Team** – The Consultant, Key Personnel and any additional firms (such as subcontractors and subconsultants) included in the Proposal.

**Proposer** – The entity responding to this RFP by submitting the Proposal.

# Attachment B Draft Contract

Include draft contract here. Attachment B is included to provide the Proposer with the general form and content that the Owner intends to use for the contract for this Study. The Owner recognizes that there will be minor modifications to the final contract form that will be identified during contract negotiations.

### **Agreement for Engineering Services**

### Between the

Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District

and

### Consultant

This Agreement is entered into effective	, between the Southeastern Colorado Water
Conservancy District (DISTRICT), Pueblo, Colorado, and	(CONSULTANT), effective
under the terms and conditions set forth	herein. District and CONSULTANT are jointly
referred to herein as the "Parties"	

### **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT desires to employ CONSULTANT's services for the Pueblo Dam Hydroelectric Project (PDHP) Operator services; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT desires to provide such services to DISTRICT under the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the Parties contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

### Terms of Agreement

- 1. During the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT hereby agrees to provide the DISTRICT with the scope of services as outlined in **Attachment A** of this Agreement.
- 2. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties, CONSULTANT will perform all services under this Agreement by and through the persons of Kleinfelder, Inc.
- 3. CONSULTANT will communicate regularly with the DISTRICT regarding status of the project budget and schedule as well as technical activities including information coordination with DISTRICT.
- 4. DISTRICT will designate an individual to be the primary contact for CONSULTANT, but CONSULTANT will remain available to work with other DISTRICT staff or board members upon request.
- 5. Beginning April 1, 2019, and on the last day of each month thereafter, CONSULTANT will bill the District for services performed during the preceding month. The total fees shall not exceed the amounts shown in **Attachment A** without prior written District approval. Also included will be an itemization of expenses incurred during the preceding month. CONSULTANTs will pro-rate expenses with other CONSULTANT clients when appropriate.

15.

6.	Within thirty (30) days of billing, the DISTRICT will remit billed amounts to CONSULTANT.
7.	This Agreement remains in effect from, 2020 through December 31, 2020. Either party may seek to amend, extend or terminate the Agreement with 30 days written notice to the other party.
8.	All work done by CONSULTANT shall be of the professional standard of care defined herein as performing Services in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other members of CONSULTANT's profession practicing in the same locality under similar conditions and at the date the Services are provided ("Standard of Care"). No other representation, guarantee or warranty, express or implied is included or intended in this Agreement or in any communication (express or written), certification, report, opinion, document or Instrument of Service.
9.	Pursuant to this Agreement, CONSULTANT will be treated as an independent CONSULTANT. The Agreement is non-exclusive; CONSULTANT has and will continue to have other business activities and perform services for persons other than DISTRICT. CONSULTANT shall have the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed. Neither CONSULTANT, its employees nor sub-CONSULTANTs are to be considered employees or agents of the DISTRICT. DISTRICT shall not withhold from CONSULTANT compensation any amount that would normally be withheld from an employee's pay.
10.	Any notice given in connection with this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be delivered either by hand to the other party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at the other party's address stated herein. Either party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the change in accordance with this paragraph.
11.	This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without DISTRICT the other party's prior written permission.
12.	The waiver by either party of a material breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate, or be construed, as a waiver of any subsequent breach.
13.	No change, modification or waiver of any term of this Agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and signed by both DISTRICT and CONSULTANT.
14.	No member of the Board of Directors or District employee shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or to any benefit arising from it. However, this clause does not apply to this Agreement to the extent that this Agreement is made with a corporation for the Corporation's general benefit.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior agreements

or understandings between DISTRICT and CONSULTANT.

- 16. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of Colorado without regard to conflicts of law principles.
- 17. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- 18. CONSULTANT certifies that it shall comply with the provisions of C.R.S. § 8-17.5-101, *et seq*. CONSULTANT shall not knowingly employ or Agreement with an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement or enter into an Agreement with a sub-CONSULTANT that knowingly employs or Agreements with an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement. CONSULTANT represents, warrants and agrees that it (i) has verified that it does not employ any illegal aliens through participation in the Basic Pilot Employment Verification Program administered by the Social Security Administration and the Department of Homeland Security, or (ii) otherwise will comply with the requirements of C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(I). CONSULTANT shall comply with all reasonable requests made in the course of an investigation by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment. If CONSULTANT fails to comply with any requirement of this provision, or C.R.S. § 8-17.5-101, *et seq.*, DISTRICT may terminate this Agreement for material breach of Agreement, and CONSULTANT shall be liable for actual damages to DISTRICT.

If CONSULTANT obtains actual knowledge that a sub-CONSULTANT performing work under this Agreement knowingly employs or Agreements with an illegal alien, CONSULTANT shall:

- a. Notify the sub-CONSULTANT and DISTRICT within three (3) days that CONSULTANT has actual knowledge that the sub-CONSULTANT is employing or Agreementing with an illegal alien; and
- b. Terminate the sub-Agreement with the sub-CONSULTANT if within the three (3) days of receiving the notice required pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above, the sub-CONSULTANT does not stop employing or Agreementing with the illegal alien, unless the sub-CONSULTANT provides information to establish that the sub-CONSULTANT has not knowingly employed or Agreemented with an illegal alien.
- 19. Neither party shall be liable for failure to fulfill its obligations if affected by causes beyond its control such as Force Majeure. Force Majeure includes, but is not limited to, acts of God; acts of a legislative, administrative, or judicial entity; acts of DISTRICT's separate Agreements and CONSULTANTs; war; fires; floods; labor disturbances; and unusually severe or unanticipated weather.

- 20. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create an Agreementual relationship with or cause of action in favor of a third party, against either CONSULTANT or DISTRICT.
- 21. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any consequential damages, including but not limited to, loss of profits, loss of use, incidental, indirect, exemplary, punitive, penal, multiple or other special damages incurred by the other party or for which either party may be liable to any third party.
- 22. STATUTE OF LIMITATION REDUCTION. Causes of action between the parties to this Agreement pertaining to acts or failures to act shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statutes of limitations shall commence to run not later than either the date of Substantial Completion of CONSULTANT's services for acts or failures to act occurring prior to Substantial Completion of CONSULTANT's services, or the date of issuance of the final payment to CONSULTANT for acts or failures to act occurring after Substantial Completion of CONSULTANT services. However, the statute of limitations may commence to run sooner than the dates of Substantial Completion of CONSULTANT's services or final payment to CONSULTANT in accordance with applicable statutory or common law. DISTRICT agrees that any claim or suit for damages made or filed against CONSULTANT by DISTRICT will be made or filed solely against CONSULTANT or its successors or assigns and that no shareholder or employee of CONSULTANT shall be personally liable to DISTRICT for damages under any circumstances.
- 23. CONSULTANT will not take title to, will not accept risk of loss with respect to, and will not be responsible for the removal and disposal of any hazardous materials found at the Project site.
- 24. CONSULTANT will indemnify, defend and hold harmless DISTRICT against any and all liability for leasing company's errors & omissions, bodily injury including death, bodily injury to leasing company's employees, property damage. All policies held by the leasing company, General Liability, Automobile Liability and Umbrella/Excess Liability will be endorsed to show DISTRICT as an Additional Insured, provide Waiver of Subrogation favoring DISTRICT and Leasing Company's policies will be Primary to any insurance carried by DISTRICT and DISTRICT policies will not be required to contribute to any losses or suits.

### 25. Insurance Requirements:

- General Liability \$2,000,000 per Occurrence
- Auto Liability \$2,000,000 per Occurrence
- Limits can be satisfied with an Umbrella/Excess Liability policy

- 26. COST ESTIMATES. Any cost estimates, financial analyses and economic feasibility projections provided by CONSULTANT will be on a basis of experience and judgement. Since CONSULTANT has no control over market conditions or bidding procedures, CONSULTANT does not warrant that financial aspects, economic feasibility projections, bids or ultimate construction costs will not vary from these cost estimates.
- 27. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY. Excluding CONSULTANT'S liability for bodily injury or damage to the property of third parties, the total aggregate liability of CONSULTANT arising out of the performance or breach of this Agreement shall not exceed the compensation paid to CONSULTANT under this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall no liability to the DISTRICT for contingent, consequential, or other indirect damages including, without limitation, damages for loss of use, revenue or profit, operating costs and facility downtime, however the same may be caused. The limitations and exclusions of liability set forth in this Article shall apply regardless of the fault, breach of contract, tort, strict liability or otherwise of CONSULTANT, its employees, or subconsultants.
- 28. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. Services in addition to those specified in Scope of Services will be provided by CONSULTANT if authorized in writing or otherwise confirmed by DISTRICT. Additional services will be paid for by DISTRICT as indicated in any Letter of Proposal, Task Authorization, or such other document as deemed appropriate by DISTRICT and CONSULTANT. In the absence of an express agreement about compensation, CONSTULTANT shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to its compensation for performing such additional services.

Entered this	day of	2020.
Southeastern C	olorado Water Conservanc	y District (DISTRICT)
Ву:		
	Д	Date
	(CONSU	JLTANT)
By:		

Date

### ATTACHMENT A

**Scope of Services and Fee for Consulting Services** 

To

**Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District** 

# **Attachment C**

# **Study Background Documents**

The following Study documents are provided on the District at website, www.secwcd.org:

- 1. Fryingpan-Arkansas Project Vicinity Map, March 17, 2017.
- 2. Fryingpan-Arkansas Project, Summary of Separable Construction Costs, Facilities with Reimbursable Components, 12/28/1995, Bureau of Reclamation.
- 3. Table II-3, Tunnel Data.
- 4. Table II-4, Fryingpan-Arkansas Project Conduits, Length-Diameter-Capacity-Width-Clearing
- 5. Fryingpan-Arkansas Project History, 1963-1975 (Hard Copies only available in District Office)